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October 6, 2015
Response to Round 2 of Bidder Questions 

For Request for Proposals (RFP) 14-18 Electronic Check Processing – Check 21 Services 

To All Potential Bidders:

Attached are the Department’s responses to Round 2 Questions received for the above referenced RFP.

	#
	RFP Section
	RFP Page #
	Question
	Answer

	1
	III, A. Functional Requirements, 2.1
	19.2
	Please clarify what is meant by “number of ICL files in a single ICL file”. Does this refer to number of batches of data included in a single file, or the number of ICL files transmitted via a single connection in a given day?
	The Department was unable to locate the quote, however we offer the following clarification:

The intent of the two bullets under “Required Response” for Functional Requirement 2.1 is to determine any limitations the Bidder may have in receiving Electronic Items in a single transmission. 

The first bullet of the required response was intended to allow Bidders the opportunity to describe any limitation on the number of Electronic Items that can be contained within a single File to be included in a transmission. If the Department has more Electronic Items to transmit than this limitation allows, the Department may include multiple files to be sent to the Bidder for processing in a single transmission. The second bullet of the Required Response was intended to allow Bidders the opportunity to describe any limitation on the number of files which can be sent in a single transmission.

Using the Bidder’s response to these two bullet points, the Department expects to have a clear understanding of the maximum limit of the number of Electronic Items that can be sent from the Department to the Bidder in a single transmission.

	2
	Article IX.  Contractor Performance Monitoring, Audit frequency
	87
	Would the bidder be amenable to limiting the number of audit requests made in a given year as well as provide negotiated terms of notice to the contractor?
	The Department does not negotiate contract terms prior to contract award. Along with Bid submission, Bidders must provide any proposed changes to contract terms. Bidders cannot propose contract changes that materially deviate from mandatory requirements of the RFP. All Bidder-Proposed Changes must be set forth in the manner described in Section V.B.16 of the RFP and Response Requirement thereto.

	3
	Attachment 17
	176
	Attachment 17 indicates that NYS will open 5 bank accounts.    As the RFP mentions 4 tax types, what is the purpose of the fifth account?
	Currently DTF requires 4 bank accounts; one for each tax type:  Corporation Tax, Sales Tax, Highway Use Tax and Personal Income Tax.  The Department corrects it’s answer to #13 in the first round of Questions and Answers to: 

The approximate average monthly account balances for all 4 current bank accounts is $206 million. 

Corporation Tax currently processes checks for two separate Tax Applications, but are deposited into a single account.

Attachment 17 indicates that 5 accounts is the “Estimated Annual Volume.”  The Department does anticipate the possibility of adding additional accounts to utilize Check 21 services.

	4
	Article XI. Service Management A. Site Resources
	88
	The bank respectfully requests that DTF consider striking this requirement. The types of services DTF is considering purchasing with this RFP are generic – not a client customized solution – and these sites are utilized by a vast number of clients.  As such, the bank’s processing sites are subject to changes and the bank makes these business decisions in the best interest of all of its clients. Therefore, it is not practicable to have this decision dependent upon a client’s permission. The bank can agree to provide the State with prior notification of any applicable site changes. Will the State remove this requirement?
	The Department does not negotiate contract terms prior to contract award.  Along with Bid submission, Bidders must provide any proposed changes to contract terms.  Bidders cannot propose contract changes that materially deviate from mandatory requirements of the RFP.  All Bidder-Proposed Changes must be set forth in the manner described in section V.B.16 of the RFP and the Response Requirement thereto. 

	5
	Section III. Technical Requirements B. Development and Support Requirements 1. Processing and Storage and Article XI. Service Management A. Site Resources
	26 and 88
	The bank respectfully provides the below disclosure which may be applicable for the services proposed in this RFP. Does the State accept this disclosure?

The bank performs all collection and disbursement services covered by this RFP (including storage related to those services) in the United States and does not use sub-contractors retained specifically for this contract to provide those services.  However, for transparency, the bank is disclosing that it may utilize third party vendors and affiliates which are located outside the United States (including in India) to perform certain limited support functions (such as repairing a check) in connection with such services the bank provides to all of its customers, not just the State of New York.  Since these vendors and affiliates provide this limited support for all the bank's customers and not just the State of New York, the bank does not consider them to be a subcontractor for purposes of this RFP and does not consider the support functions they perform to be processing or services.
	No, all data must be processed and stored within the United States.

	6
	A. Functional Requirements

3.3  Information for Non-Conforming Images required in 3.2 must include:
	21
	Can the State please provide details on where they will identify the tracking number contained in the ICL file?
	A tracking number to be contained in the ICL file will be developed and agreed upon by the Department and the Contractor. 

For the purposes of Requirement 3.3, this piece of information will be transmitted back to DTF with the associated Electronic Item deemed to be a Non-Conforming Image.

	7
	Article XVII. Reserved Rights, number 1 and R. Investigations
	104
	Under bank policies, employee personnel files are confidential and it would violate such policies to provide copies of such records outside of the bank. Will the State consider other forms of validation and verification of information to be mutually agreed by the parties upon award?
	The Department does not negotiate contract terms prior to contract award.  Along with Bid submission, Bidders must provide any proposed changes to contract terms. Bidders cannot propose contract changes that materially deviate from mandatory requirements of the RFP.  All Bidder-Proposed Changes must be set forth in the manner described in section V.B.16 of the RFP and the Response Requirement thereto. 

	8
	Article XVII. Reserved Rights, number 1, and R. Investigations
	94 and 104
	Under corporate policies, employee personnel records are confidential and it would violate such policies to provide copies of such records to an outside party. Will the State consider other forms of validation and verification of information to be provided instead of such records, with such forms to be mutually agreed by the parties upon award?
	The Department does not negotiate contract terms prior to contract award.  Along with Bid submission, Bidders must provide any proposed changes to contract terms.  Bidders cannot propose contract changes that materially deviate from mandatory requirements of the RFP.  All Bidder-Proposed Changes must be set forth in the manner described in section V.B.16 of the RFP and the Response Requirement thereto. 

	9
	General Question
	N/A
	Will the State consider extending their Round 2 Question and Answer period that is due today September 18, 2015 by 2 ET? Per the State’s amendment from September 10th we believe that the State is working on amending the Schedule of Events…, The Department requires additional time to review and answer questions received for the Round 1 Question and Answer period for this Request for Proposals. Answers to these questions, along with an amended Schedule of Events, will be posted to the Department website on Friday, September 18, 2015.
	This question was sent to the Department on September 18th. The Department issued an Amendment #1 which modified the Schedule of Events requiring Round 2 questions to be received by September 25, 2015 by 2PM ET.

	10
	A. Functional Requirements - 5.1
	22
	What levels of collected balances are expected to be maintained with the winning bank in connection with providing this service?  If greater than 20 million would a Federal Home of Loan Atlanta LC be an acceptable form of collateral?  This type of collateral is not widely accepted in NYS; it is accepted by NYS OSC.
	The balance levels that remain overnight in the four accounts will be determined by DTF and NYS OSC at the time the accounts are established.  The accounts are swept of prior day available balances early each morning, leaving the designated balances in the accounts.  In the case of an account with relatively low deposits, a sweep will not occur until a designated threshold is reached.  In the event that the collected balances reach $20 million, a Letter of Credit from Federal Home Loan of Atlanta could be an acceptable form of collateral, assuming that the terms of the LC are able to be negotiated to the State’s satisfaction.   There are days, within some tax programs, where a single day’s deposits will be higher than the agreed upon collateral amount.  In those cases, accounts are swept as soon as possible.

	11
	D. Cash Management Requirements - 5.0 Collateral
	35
	Can DTF please confirm that average collected balances are 190 million (this was disclosed in the first set of Q&A)?  Notably, that balance level seems high. ~200 million is a very large collected balance and in today’s environment with regulations such as BASEL III and a very costly balance level for Banks to hold.  Do collected balances (not the amount deposited but rather the average collected balance maintained) have to be that high?  Can they be invested by OSC into STIP investments?  
	Please note the Department has modified its response to #13 of the first round of Questions to read: The approximate average monthly account balances for all 5 current bank accounts is $206 million.
Although the average monthly collected balance is $206 million, the opening available balance in the accounts will be swept from the accounts each day.  Any necessary collateral will be determined by the NYS OSC.  OSC will make the determination about any STIP investments after the available balances have been swept from the accounts.

	12
	Article X.  Maintenance and Enhancements
	88
	With respect to prior written authorization for maintenance related to the product and services contemplated under this RFP, they are systemic services of the Bank used by countless clients. Bank wide maintenance cannot reasonably be contingent upon DTF approval.  Any maintenance related exclusively to DTF can absolutely be contingent upon DTF approval.  Is this acceptable?
	The Department does not negotiate contract terms prior to contract award.  Along with Bid submission, Bidders must provide any proposed changes to contract terms.  Bidders cannot propose contract changes that materially deviate from mandatory requirements of the RFP.  All Bidder-Proposed Changes must be set forth in the manner described in section V.B.16 of the RFP and the Response Requirement thereto. 

	13
	1. Removal of Management and Staff Personnel
	89
	Would DTF respectfully consider allowing relevant Bank staffing decisions be at minimum mutual?  
	The Department does not negotiate contract terms prior to contract award.  Along with Bid submission, Bidders must provide any proposed changes to contract terms.  Bidders cannot propose contract changes that materially deviate from mandatory requirements of the RFP.  All Bidder-Proposed Changes must be set forth in the manner described in section V.B.16 of the RFP and the Response Requirement thereto. 

	14
	A. Audit Frequency

B. Physical Security

Article XVII. Reserved Rights. 2.
	87, 90, 94
	The sites being leveraged by DTF for this contract are hubs used by extremely large numbers of clients. They are not customized to meet the needs of DTF. Unannounced physical audits are not feasible and likely would not comply with banking regulations.  Perhaps this can be modified to indicate DTF would afford reasonable prior notice for site inspections or audits?
	The Department does not negotiate contract terms prior to contract award.  Along with Bid submission, Bidders must provide any proposed changes to contract terms. Bidders cannot propose contract changes that materially deviate from mandatory requirements of the RFP.  All Bidder-Proposed Changes must be set forth in the manner described in section V.B.16 of the RFP and the Response Requirement thereto. 

	15
	Article XIII.  Disaster Recovery/Fail Safe Operations/Business Continuity Plan
	91
	The Disaster Recovery plans are not developed on a customized basis, but cover all clients receiving the applicable services. Clients are not involved in the Bank’s systemic disaster recovery testing.  We can however perform tests that are specifically relevant to DTF to be determined upon award in partnership with DTF. Would DTF consider modifying this requirement?
	The Department does not negotiate contract terms prior to contract award.  Along with Bid submission, Bidders must provide any proposed changes to contract terms.  Bidders cannot propose contract changes that materially deviate from mandatory requirements of the RFP.  All Bidder-Proposed Changes must be set forth in the manner described in section V.B.16 of the RFP and the Response Requirement thereto.

 

	16
	D. Other Remedies
	96
	Would DTF please add further clarification / definition to this clause:  “DTF may retain amounts payable to contractor such money as may be necessary to satisfy any claim or reimbursements”?  This paragraph seems very broad and therefore bidders are left unclear of its meaning and how it might realistically be applied.
	This State has Set-Off Rights.  See Appendix A. 

	17
	Article XX.   Termination

Termination for Cause
	96
	Would DTF consider making the right to terminate for cause a mutual right so that the bank also has the right to terminate for cause under certain conditions?
	No.



	18
	Intellectual Property Rights Indemnity
	98
	Would DTF consider modifying this requirement as follows: The bank will provide an indemnification for infringement claims based on its products and services, except to the extent the claim is caused by actions of the Department or third parties (such as by modifying the products in a way that was not approved by the bank)? 
	The Department does not negotiate contract terms prior to contract award.  Along with Bid submission, Bidders must provide any proposed changes to contract terms. Bidders cannot propose contract changes that materially deviate from mandatory requirements of the RFP.  All Bidder-Proposed Changes must be set forth in the manner described in section V.B.16 of the RFP and the Response Requirement thereto. 

	19
	E.  Breach of Confidentiality
	100
	Can DTF confirm that confidentiality breach liabilities will fall under the annual cap of 1 million?
	No, a breach of confidentiality could come within an exclusion.

	20
	N. Extension of Use
	103
	By use of the word “may” we presume it is DTF’s intention that the Bank has a right to review and approve any piggy-backing of this contract by other NYS entities.  This would be an important right to ensure appropriateness in terms of services and pricing. That said, we of course look forward to doing additional business with NYS.
	Yes, your presumption is correct.

	21
	
	
	Can you confirm if there is a bidders conference related to this RFP?
	There will be no Bidders Conference related to this RFP.
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